
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

______________________

FORM 10-Q
______________________

QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended March 31, 2012
______________________

Commission File #1-4224

AVNET, INC.
Incorporated in New York

______________________

IRS Employer Identification No. 11-1890605

2211 South 47th Street, Phoenix, Arizona 85034
(480) 643-2000

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports) and (2) has been subject to such filing
requirements for the past 90 days. Yes ☑ No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File
required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to submit and post such files). Yes ☑ No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer or a smaller reporting company. See
definitions of “large accelerated filer”, “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer ☑  Accelerated filer o  Non-accelerated filer o  Smaller Reporting Company o
    (Do not check if a smaller reporting company)   

Indicate by checkmark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes o No ☑

As of April 20, 2012, the total number of shares outstanding of the registrant’s Common Stock was 145,052,735 shares, net of treasury shares.



AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
INDEX

 Page No.
PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

  
Item 1. Financial Statements  
  

Consolidated Balance Sheets at March 31, 2012 and July 2, 2011 3
  

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the third quarters and nine months ended
March 31, 2012 and April 2, 2011

4

  
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the nine months ended March 31, 2012 and April 2, 2011 5

  
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 6

  
Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 16
  
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 27
  
Item 4. Controls and Procedures 27
  

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION
  
Item 1. Legal Proceedings 28
  
Item 1A. Risk Factors 28
  
Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds 29
  
Item 6. Exhibits 30
  
Signature Page 31
  
 Exhibit 10.1
 Exhibit 31.1
 Exhibit 31.2
 Exhibit 32.1
 Exhibit 32.2
 EX-101 INSTANCE DOCUMENT
 EX-101 SCHEMA DOCUMENT
 EX-101 CALCULATION LINKBASE DOCUMENT
 EX-101 LABELS LINKBASE DOCUMENT
 EX-101 PRESENTATION LINKBASE DOCUMENT
 EX-101 DEFINITION LINKBASE DOCUMENT

2



PART I

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 1. Financial Statements

AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Unaudited)

 
March 31, 

2012  
July 2, 

2011

 
(Thousands, except share

amounts)
ASSETS    

Current assets:    
Cash and cash equivalents $ 940,101  $ 675,334
Receivables, less allowances of $116,258 and $107,739, respectively 4,658,805  4,764,293
Inventories 2,490,285  2,596,470
Prepaid and other current assets 216,058  191,110

Total current assets 8,305,249  8,227,207
Property, plant and equipment, net 458,118  419,173
Goodwill (Notes 2 and 3) 1,081,686  885,072
Other assets 312,504  374,117

Total assets $ 10,157,557  $ 9,905,569

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY    
Current liabilities:    

Borrowings due within one year (Note 4) $ 934,450  $ 243,079
Accounts payable 3,237,490  3,561,633
Accrued expenses and other 653,785  673,016

Total current liabilities 4,825,725  4,477,728
Long-term debt (Note 4) 1,183,793  1,273,509
Other long-term liabilities 96,260  98,262

Total liabilities 6,105,778  5,849,499
Commitments and contingencies (Note 6)  
Shareholders’ equity (Notes 9 and 10):    
Common stock $1.00 par; authorized 300,000,000 shares; issued 145,082,000 shares and 152,835,000 shares,
respectively 145,082  152,835
Additional paid-in capital 1,256,808  1,233,209
Retained earnings 2,487,053  2,293,510
Accumulated other comprehensive income (Note 9) 163,534  377,211
Treasury stock at cost, 37,878 shares and 37,802 shares, respectively (698)  (695)

Total shareholders’ equity 4,051,779  4,056,070

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 10,157,557  $ 9,905,569

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Unaudited)

 Third Quarters Ended  Nine Months Ended

 
March 31, 

2012  
April 2, 

2011  
March 31, 

2012  
April 2, 

2011
 (Thousands, except per share data)
Sales $ 6,280,557  $ 6,672,404  $ 19,400,136  $ 19,622,287
Cost of sales 5,526,753  5,885,789  17,108,601  17,339,333
Gross profit 753,804  786,615  2,291,535  2,282,954
Selling, general and administrative expenses 518,421  529,605  1,567,694  1,546,701
Restructuring, integration and other charges (Note 13) 18,609  16,273  53,114  73,452
Operating income 216,774  240,737  670,727  662,801
Other income (expense), net 3,245  2,289  (1,389)  5,268
Interest expense (23,556)  (23,557)  (67,621)  (69,830)
Gain on bargain purchase and other (Note 2) 4,460  (6,308)  3,061  22,715
Income before income taxes 200,923  213,161  604,778  620,954
Income tax provision 53,361  62,130  171,163  190,715

Net income $ 147,562  $ 151,031  $ 433,615  $ 430,239

Net earnings per share (Note 10):        
Basic $ 1.02  $ 0.99  $ 2.93  $ 2.82

Diluted $ 1.00  $ 0.98  $ 2.88  $ 2.79

Shares used to compute earnings per share (Note 10):        
Basic 145,126  152,859  148,195  152,333

Diluted 147,245  154,611  150,472  154,172

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)

 Nine Months Ended
 March 31, 2012  April 2, 2011
 (Thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities:    

Net income $ 433,615  $ 430,239
Non-cash and other reconciling items:    

Depreciation and amortization 70,775  59,100
Deferred income taxes 28,438  (12,284)
Stock-based compensation 28,786  25,015
Gain on bargain purchase and other (Note 2) (3,061)  (22,715)
Other, net 47,473  45,348

Changes in (net of effects from businesses acquired):    
Receivables 75,999  (391,624)
Inventories 75,751  (262,696)
Accounts payable (352,108)  45,038
Accrued expenses and other, net (136,232)  81,209

Net cash flows provided by (used for) operating activities 269,436  (3,370)
    
Cash flows from financing activities:    

Borrowings under accounts receivable securitization program (Note 4) 590,000  485,000
Repayments of notes (Note 4) —  (109,600)
(Repayments of) proceeds from bank debt, net (Note 4) (11,527)  42,238
(Repayments of) proceeds from other debt, net (Note 4) (493)  13,572
Repurchases of common stock (Note 9) (248,840)  —
Other, net 5,555  3,231

Net cash flows provided by financing activities 334,695  434,441
    
Cash flows from investing activities:    

Purchases of property, plant and equipment (95,388)  (105,221)
Cash proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment 580  2,356
Acquisitions of operations, net of cash acquired (Note 2) (229,524)  (690,997)
Cash proceeds from divestitures (Note 2) —  10,458

Net cash flows used for investing activities (324,332)  (783,404)
    
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (15,032)  41,980
    
Cash and cash equivalents:    

— increase (decrease) 264,767  (310,353)
— at beginning of period 675,334  1,092,102

— at end of period $ 940,101  $ 781,749

    
Additional cash flow information (Note 11)    

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Basis of presentation

In the opinion of management, the accompanying unaudited interim consolidated financial statements contain all adjustments necessary to present fairly
the Company’s financial position, results of operations and cash flows. All such adjustments are of a normal recurring nature, except for (i) the "gain on
bargain purchase and other" discussed in Note 2 and (ii) the "restructuring, integration and other charges" discussed in Note 13.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Interim results of operations are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the full fiscal year. The information included in this Form 10-
Q should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended July 2, 2011.                                                

2. Acquisitions and divestitures

Acquisition activity

During the first nine months of fiscal 2012, the Company acquired nine businesses with aggregate annualized revenues of approximately $730.0 million
for an aggregate purchase price of $241,670,000, net of cash acquired. The aggregate purchase price includes $12,146,000 of contingent earn-out obligations,
which were recorded at their estimated fair values, and can be earned based on future performance of the acquired businesses. Three of the businesses
acquired are reported as part of the EM Americas region, one is reported as part of the EM EMEA region, three are reported as part of the EM Asia region,
one is reported as part of the TS EMEA region, and one is reported as part of both TS Americas and TS EMEA regions.

The Company acquired 100% ownership for all of the businesses mentioned above, except for one in which the Company acquired a 60% controlling
interest. The non-controlling interest was recorded at its estimated fair value but was not material.

Gain on bargain purchase and other

In January 2012, the Company acquired Unidux Electronic Limited ("UEL"), a Singapore publicly traded company, through a tender offer. After
assessing the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, the consideration paid was below book value even though the price paid per share represented a
premium to the trading levels at that time. Accordingly, the Company recognized a gain on bargain purchase of $4,460,000 pre- and after tax and $0.03 per
share on a diluted basis. In addition, during the first nine months of fiscal 2012, the Company recognized a loss of $1,399,000 pre-tax, $854,000 after tax and
$0.01 per diluted share related to a write-down of an investment in a small technology company and the write-off of certain deferred financing costs
associated with the early termination of a credit facility (see Note 4 for further discussion of the credit facility).

During fiscal 2011, the Company acquired Unidux, Inc. (“Unidux”), an electronics component distributor in Japan, which is reported as part of the EM
Asia region. Unidux was a publicly traded company which shares were trading below its book value for a period of time. In a tender offer, Avnet offered a
purchase price per share for Unidux that was above the prevailing trading price, thereby representing a premium to the trading levels at that time. Even though
the purchase price was below book value, the Unidux shareholders tendered their shares. As a result, the Company recognized a gain on bargain purchase of
$30,990,000 pre- and after tax and $0.20 per share on a diluted basis. Other charges recorded during the first nine months fiscal 2011 related primarily to the
impairment of a building in EMEA.

Divestitures

During the third quarter of fiscal 2011, the Company completed the divestiture of New ProSys Corp. (“ProSys”), a value-added reseller and provider of
IT infrastructure solutions. Avnet acquired ProSys as part of the Bell acquisition on July 6, 2010, and announced its intention to sell this business at that time.
Total consideration included a cash payment at closing, a short-term receivable and a three-year earn-out based upon ProSys' anticipated results. As a result of
the divestiture, the Company received initial net cash proceeds of $10,458,000 and wrote off goodwill associated with the ProSys business (see Note 3). No
gain or loss was recorded as a result of the divestiture.
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

3. Goodwill and intangible assets

The following table presents the carrying amount of goodwill, by reportable segment, for the nine months ended March 31, 2012:

 
Electronics
Marketing  

Technology
Solutions  Total

 (Thousands)
Carrying value at July 2, 2011 $ 352,870  $ 532,202  $ 885,072
Additions 159,168  59,311  218,479
Adjustments 27,312  (27,312)  —
Foreign currency translation (7,526)  (14,339)  (21,865)

Carrying value at March 31, 2012 $ 531,824  $ 549,862  $ 1,081,686

The goodwill additions are a result of businesses acquired during the first nine months of fiscal 2012 (see Note 2) and purchase accounting adjustments
during the purchase price allocation period. The adjustment to goodwill is a result of the transfer of previously acquired businesses from TS Americas to EM
Americas.

The following table presents the gross amount of goodwill and accumulated impairment as of July 2, 2011 and March 31, 2012. All of the accumulated
impairment was recognized in fiscal 2009.

 
Electronics
Marketing  

Technology
Solutions  Total

 (Thousands)
Gross goodwill at July 2, 2011 $ 1,397,980  $ 866,826  $ 2,264,806
Accumulated impairment (1,045,110)  (334,624)  (1,379,734)

Carrying value at July 2, 2011 $ 352,870  $ 532,202  $ 885,072

      

Gross goodwill at March 31, 2012 $ 1,576,934  $ 884,486  $ 2,461,420
Accumulated impairment (1,045,110)  (334,624)  (1,379,734)

Carrying value at March 31, 2012 $ 531,824  $ 549,862  $ 1,081,686

During the first nine months of fiscal 2012, the Company recognized approximately $42,764,000 for customer relationship and trade name intangible
assets as result of acquisitions. As of March 31, 2012, “Other assets” included intangible assets with a carrying value of $142,725,000 consisting of
$214,694,000 in original cost value and $71,969,000 of accumulated amortization and foreign currency translation. These assets are being amortized over a
weighted average life of 8 years. Intangible asset amortization expense was $6,853,000 and $4,620,000 for the third quarter of fiscal 2012 and 2011,
respectively, and $19,143,000 and $14,390,000 for the first nine months of fiscal 2012 and 2011, respectively. Amortization expense for the next five years is
expected to be approximately $26,000,000 each year for fiscal 2013 and 2014, $25,000,000 for fiscal 2015, $19,000,000 for fiscal 2016 and $17,000,000 for
fiscal 2017.
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

4. External financing

Short-term debt consists of the following:

 
March 31, 

2012  
July 2, 

2011
 (Thousands)
Bank credit facilities $ 183,110  $ 81,951
Borrowings under the accounts receivable securitization program 750,000  160,000
Other debt due within one year 1,340  1,128

Short-term debt $ 934,450  $ 243,079

Bank credit facilities consist of various committed and uncommitted lines of credit with financial institutions utilized primarily to support the working
capital requirements of foreign operations. The weighted average interest rate on the bank credit facilities was 7.5% and 7.8% at March 31, 2012 and July 2,
2011, respectively.

In August 2011, the Company amended its accounts receivable securitization program (the “Program”) with a group of financial institutions to allow
the Company to sell, on a revolving basis, an undivided interest of up to $750,000,000 ($600,000,000 prior to the amendment) in eligible receivables while
retaining a subordinated interest in a portion of the receivables. The Program does not qualify for sale treatment and, as a result, any borrowings under the
Program are recorded as debt on the consolidated balance sheet. The Program contains certain covenants, all of which the Company was in compliance with
as of March 31, 2012. The Program has a one year term that expires in August 2012. Interest on borrowings is calculated using a base rate or a commercial
paper rate plus a spread of 0.35%. The facility fee is 0.35%.

Long-term debt consists of the following:

 
March 31, 

2012  
July 2, 

2011
 (Thousands)
5.875% Notes due March 15, 2014 $ 300,000  $ 300,000
6.00% Notes due September 1, 2015 250,000  250,000
6.625% Notes due September 15, 2016 300,000  300,000
5.875% Notes due June 15, 2020 300,000  300,000
Other long-term debt 36,397  126,512
Subtotal 1,186,397  1,276,512
Discount on notes (2,604)  (3,003)

Long-term debt $ 1,183,793  $ 1,273,509

During the second quarter of fiscal 2012, the Company entered into a five-year $1,000,000,000 senior unsecured revolving credit facility (the "2012
Credit Facility") with a syndicate of banks which expires in November 2016. In connection with the 2012 Credit Facility, the Company terminated its existing
unsecured $500,000,000 credit facility (the "2008 Credit Facility") which was to expire in September 2012. Under the 2012 Credit Facility, the Company may
select from various interest rate options, currencies and maturities. The 2012 Credit Facility contains certain covenants, all of which the Company was in
compliance with as of March 31, 2012. At March 31, 2012, there were $21,847,000 of borrowings under the 2012 Credit Facility included in “Other long-
term debt” in the preceding table. In addition, there were $17,102,000 letters of credit issued under the 2012 Credit Facility which represents a utilization of
the 2012 Credit Agreement capacity but are not recorded in the consolidated balance sheet as the letters of credit are not debt. At July 2, 2011, there were
$122,093,000 of borrowings outstanding under the 2008 Credit Facility included in “Other long-term debt” in the preceding table and $16,602,000 in letters
of credit issued.

At March 31, 2012, the carrying value and fair value of the Company’s debt was $2,118,243,000 and $2,266,203,000, respectively. Fair value was
estimated primarily based upon quoted market prices.
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

5. Derivative financial instruments

Many of the Company’s subsidiaries, on occasion, purchase and sell products in currencies other than their functional currencies. This subjects the
Company to the risks associated with fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. The Company reduces this risk by utilizing natural hedging (i.e.
offsetting receivables and payables) as well as by creating offsetting positions through the use of derivative financial instruments, primarily forward foreign
exchange contracts with maturities of less than sixty days. The Company continues to have exposure to foreign currency risks to the extent they are not
hedged. The Company adjusts all foreign denominated balances and any outstanding foreign exchange contracts to fair market value through the consolidated
statements of operations. Therefore, the market risk related to the foreign exchange contracts is offset by the changes in valuation of the underlying items
being hedged. The asset or liability representing the fair value of foreign exchange contracts, based upon level 2 criteria under the fair value measurements
standard, is classified in the captions “other current assets” or “accrued expenses and other,” as applicable, in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
and were not material. Gains or losses related to the forward contracts were not material and are recorded in “other income (expense), net” in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

The Company generally does not hedge its investment in its foreign operations. The Company does not enter into derivative financial instruments for
trading or speculative purposes and monitors the financial stability and credit standing of its counterparties.

6. Commitments and contingencies

Bell

During fiscal 2011, the Company recognized a contingent liability for potential unpaid import duties associated with the acquisition of Bell
Microproducts Inc. (“Bell”). Prior to the acquisition of Bell by Avnet, Customs and Border Protection (“CBP”) initiated a review of the importing process at
one of Bell’s subsidiaries and identified compliance deficiencies. Subsequent to the acquisition of Bell by Avnet, CBP began a compliance audit. The
Company evaluated projected duties, interest and penalties that potentially may be imposed as a result of the audit and recognized a contingent liability of
$10,000,000 which was recorded to goodwill in fiscal 2011. Depending on the ultimate resolution of the matter with CBP, the Company estimates that the
range of the potential exposure associated with the liability may be up to $73,000,000; however, the Company believes the contingent liability recorded is a
reasonable estimate of the liability based upon the facts available at this time.

Other

From time to time, the Company may become a party to, or otherwise involved in other pending and threatened litigation, tax, environmental and other
matters arising in the ordinary course of conducting its business. Management does not anticipate that any contingent matters will have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s financial condition, liquidity or results of operations.

7. Income taxes

The Company’s effective tax rate on its income before income taxes was 26.6% in the third quarter of fiscal 2012 as compared with 29.1% in the third
quarter of fiscal 2011. During the third quarter of fiscal 2012, the Company's effective tax rate was favorably impacted by releases of valuation allowances,
favorable audit settlements, and releases of reserves.   During the third quarter of fiscal 2011, the Company's effective tax rate was negatively impacted by
increases to reserves, partially offset by releases of valuation allowances. For the first nine months of fiscal 2012 and 2011, the Company's effective tax rate
was 28.3% and 30.7%, respectively. The decrease is a result of a favorable tax adjustment, primarily related to releases of valuation allowance and favorable
audit settlements, partially offset by increases to reserves.  During the first nine months of fiscal 2011, the Company recognized an income tax adjustment of
$19,800,000, and $0.13 per share on a diluted basis, primarily related to the non-cash write-off of a deferred tax asset associated with the integration of
acquired legal entities, which was partially offset by a non-taxable gain on bargain purchase (see Note 2).

The tax rate is impacted primarily by the statutory tax rates of the countries in which the Company operates and the related levels of income in those
jurisdictions as well as assessment of tax risks that are common to multinational enterprises and assessments of the realizability of deferred tax assets and the
associated establishment or release of tax valuation allowances.
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

In April 2012, the Company received a U.S. Internal Revenue Service Revenue Agent's Report related to the tax audit of an acquired company which
requires Joint Committee review and approval. If approved, the Company will recognize additional net operating losses as determined under the settlement as
well as the release of related reserves.  As a result, it is reasonably possible that within the next twelve months the Company may record a tax benefit in the
range of $15,000,000 to $17,000,000, which would favorably impact the effective tax rate in the period in which the matter is effectively settled.

8. Pension plan

The Company’s noncontributory defined benefit pension plan (the “Plan”) covers substantially all domestic employees. Components of net periodic
pension costs during the quarters and nine months ended March 31, 2012 and April 2, 2011 were as follows:

 Third Quarters Ended  Nine Months Ended

 
March 31, 

2012  
April 2, 

2011  
March 31, 

2012  
April 2, 

2011
 (Thousands)
Service cost $ 7,095  $ 3,356  $ 21,285  $ 17,906
Interest cost 3,731  3,240  11,193  10,440
Expected return on plan assets (6,734)  (6,720)  (20,202)  (20,670)
Recognized net actuarial loss 2,420  2,054  7,260  6,704
Amortization of prior service credit (469)  (457)  (1,407)  (1,407)

Net periodic pension cost $ 6,043  $ 1,473  $ 18,129  $ 12,973

There were no contributions made to the Plan during the first nine months of fiscal 2012.

9. Shareholders’ equity

Comprehensive income

 Third Quarters Ended  Nine Months Ended

 
March 31, 

2012  
April 2, 

2011  
March 31, 

2012  
April 2, 

2011
 (Thousands)
Net income $ 147,562  $ 151,031  $ 433,615  $ 430,239
Foreign currency translation adjustments and other 68,792  138,124  (213,677)  271,677

Total comprehensive income $ 216,354  $ 289,155  $ 219,938  $ 701,916

Share repurchase program

In August 2011, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to $500,000,000 of common stock in the open market or through
privately negotiated transactions. The timing and actual number of shares purchased will depend on a variety of factors such as price, corporate and regulatory
requirements, and prevailing market conditions. From August 15, 2011, when the program was made effective, through the end of the third quarter of fiscal
2012, the Company repurchased 8,770,000 shares under this program with an average market price of $28.35 per share for a total cost of $248,840,000.
Repurchased shares were retired.
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

10. Earnings per share

 Third Quarters Ended  Nine Months Ended
 March 31, 2012  April 2, 2011  March 31, 2012  April 2, 2011
 (Thousands, except per share data)
Numerator:        

Net income $ 147,562  $ 151,031  $ 433,615  $ 430,239

Denominator:        
Weighted average common shares for basic earnings per share 145,126  152,859  148,195  152,333
Net effect of dilutive stock options and performance share awards 2,119  1,752  2,277  1,839

Weighted average common shares for diluted earnings per share 147,245  154,611  150,472  154,172

        

Basic earnings per share $ 1.02  $ 0.99  $ 2.93  $ 2.82

Diluted earnings per share $ 1.00  $ 0.98  $ 2.88  $ 2.79

Options to purchase 238,000 shares of the Company’s stock were excluded from the calculations of diluted earnings per share for both the nine months
ended March 31, 2012 and April 2, 2011, because the exercise price for those options was above the average market price of the Company’s stock for those
periods and inclusion of these options in the diluted earnings per share calculation would have had an anti-dilutive effect. For the quarters ended March 31,
2012 and April 2, 2011, none of the outstanding options were excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share because all of the outstanding
options were dilutive.

 

11. Additional cash flow information

Interest and income taxes paid in the nine months ended March 31, 2012 and April 2, 2011 were as follows:

 Nine Months Ended

 
March 31, 

2012  
April 2, 

2011
 (Thousands)
Interest $ 74,974  $ 77,839
Income taxes 144,525  118,326
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

12. Segment information

 Third Quarters Ended  Nine Months Ended

 
March 31, 

2012  
April 2, 

2011  
March 31, 

2012  
April 2, 

2011
 (Thousands)
Sales:        
Electronics Marketing $ 3,756,849  $ 3,925,236  $ 11,168,722  $ 11,104,454
Technology Solutions 2,523,708  2,747,168  8,231,414  8,517,833

 $ 6,280,557  $ 6,672,404  $ 19,400,136  $ 19,622,287

Operating income (loss):        
Electronics Marketing $ 194,259  $ 224,764  $ 560,317  $ 600,296
Technology Solutions 67,930  57,325  251,871  219,182
Corporate (26,806)  (25,079)  (88,347)  (83,225)
 235,383  257,010  723,841  736,253
Restructuring, integration and other charges (Note 13) (18,609)  (16,273)  (53,114)  (73,452)

 $ 216,774  $ 240,737  $ 670,727  $ 662,801

Sales, by geographic area:        
Americas (1) $ 2,827,999  $ 2,822,834  $ 8,649,605  $ 8,587,700
EMEA (2) 1,836,555  2,175,494  5,688,339  6,187,594
Asia/Pacific (3) 1,616,003  1,674,076  5,062,192  4,846,993

 $ 6,280,557  $ 6,672,404  $ 19,400,136  $ 19,622,287
_____________________
(1) Includes sales in the United States of $2.45 billion and $2.43 billion the third quarters ended March 31, 2012 and April 2, 2011, respectively.

Includes sales in the United States of $7.49 billion and $7.47 billion for the first nine months of fiscal 2012 and 2011, respectively.
(2) Includes sales in Germany and United Kingdom of $467.9 million and $311.6 million, respectively, for the third quarter ended March 31, 2012, and

$1.82 billion and $1.05 billion, respectively, for the first nine months of fiscal 2012. Includes sales in Germany and the United Kingdom of $816.0
million and $414.3 million, respectively, for the third quarter ended April 2, 2011, and $2.30 billion and $1.29 billion, respectively, for the first nine
months of fiscal 2011.

(3) Includes sales in Taiwan, China (including Hong Kong) and Singapore of $431.8 million, $560.2 million and $296.5 million, respectively, for the
third quarter ended March 31, 2012, and $1.41 billion, $1.71 billion and $890.4 million, respectively, for the first nine months of fiscal 2012.
Includes sales in Taiwan, China (including Hong Kong) and Singapore of $452.3 million, $599.0 million and $314.1 million, respectively, for the
third quarter ended April 2, 2011, and $1.32 billion, $1.77 billion and $896.0 million, respectively, for the first nine months of fiscal 2011.
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

 
March 31, 

2012  
July 2, 

2011
 (Thousands)
Assets:    

Electronics Marketing $ 6,123,074  $ 5,890,871
Technology Solutions 3,713,887  3,765,157
Corporate 320,596  249,541

 $ 10,157,557  $ 9,905,569

Property, plant, and equipment, net, by geographic area    
Americas (4) $ 274,763  $ 242,450
EMEA (5) 155,342  150,601

  Asia/Pacific 28,013  26,122

 $ 458,118  $ 419,173

_____________________
(4) Includes property, plant and equipment, net, of $262.9 million and $231.3 million as of March 31, 2012 and July 2, 2011, respectively, in the United

States.
(5) Includes property, plant and equipment, net, of $95.1 million, $26.1 million and $17.4 million in Germany, Belgium and the United Kingdom,

respectively, as of March 31, 2012 and $92.8 million, $23.4 million and $16.4 million, respectively, as of July 2, 2011.

13. Restructuring, integration and other charges

Fiscal 2012

During the third quarter and first nine months of fiscal 2012, the Company initiated actions to reduce costs in both operating groups in response to
current market conditions and incurred acquisition and integration costs associated with recently acquired businesses. As a result, the Company incurred
restructuring, integration and other charges as presented in the following table.

 

 

Quarter
Ended

March 31, 2012  

Nine Months
Ended

March 31, 2012
 (Thousands)
Restructuring charges $ 11,217  $ 40,156
Integration costs 3,988  7,438
Acquisition transaction costs 4,196  7,262
Reversal of excess prior year restructuring reserves (792)  (1,742)

Pre-tax restructuring, integration and other charges $ 18,609  $ 53,114

After tax restructuring, integration and other charges $ 13,691  $ 37,255

Restructuring, integration and other charges per share on a diluted basis $ 0.10  $ 0.25

The activity related to the restructuring charges incurred during the first nine months of fiscal 2012 is presented in the following table:

 
Severance
Reserves  

Facility
Exit Costs  Other  Total

 (Thousands)
Fiscal 2012 pre-tax charges $ 26,523  $ 10,525  $ 3,108  $ 40,156

Cash payments (18,385)  (1,460)  (1,512)  (21,357)
Non-cash write-downs —  (2,112)  (537)  (2,649)
Other, principally foreign currency translation (15)  (106)  9  (112)

Balance at March 31, 2012 $ 8,123  $ 6,847  $ 1,068  $ 16,038
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

Severance charges recorded in the first nine months of fiscal 2012 related to over 550 employees in sales, administrative and finance functions in
connection with the cost reduction actions taken in all three regions in both operating groups with employee reductions of approximately 350 in EM and 200
in TS. Facility exit costs for vacated facilities related to nine facilities in the Americas, five in EMEA and twelve in Asia and consisted of reserves for
remaining lease liabilities and the write-down of leasehold improvements and other fixed assets. Other restructuring charges related primarily to other onerous
lease obligations that have no on-going benefit to the Company. Of the $40,156,000 pre-tax restructuring charges recorded during the first nine months of
fiscal 2012, $23,948,000 related to EM, $16,208,000 related to TS and the remaining related to corporate charges. As of March 31, 2012, management
expects the majority of the remaining severance and other reserves to be utilized by the end of fiscal 2013 and the remaining facility exit cost reserves to be
utilized by the end of fiscal 2015.

  
Integration costs incurred related to the integration of acquired businesses and incremental costs incurred as part of the consolidation and closure of

certain office and warehouse locations. Integration costs included IT consulting costs for system integration assistance, facility moving costs, legal fees,
travel, meeting, marketing and communication costs that were incrementally incurred as a result of the integration activity. Also included in integration costs
are incremental salary costs associated with the consolidation and closure activities as well as costs associated with acquisition activity, primarily related to
the acquired businesses' personnel who were retained by Avnet for extended periods following the close of the acquisitions solely to assist in the integration
of the acquired businesses' IT systems and administrative and logistics operations into those of Avnet. These identified personnel have no other meaningful
day-to-day operational responsibilities outside of the integration effort. Transaction costs consisted primarily of professional fees for brokering the
acquisitions, due diligence work and other legal costs.

 
Acquisition transaction costs incurred during the first nine months of fiscal 2012 related primarily to professional fees for advisory and broker services

and legal and accounting due diligence procedures and other legal costs associated with acquisitions.

Fiscal 2011

During fiscal 2011, the Company incurred restructuring, integration and other charges related to acquisition and integration activities associated with
acquired businesses. The following table presents the activity during the first nine months of fiscal 2012 related to the remaining restructuring reserves
established during fiscal 2011.

 
Severance
Reserves  

Facility
Exit Costs  Other  Total

 (Thousands)
Balance at July 2, 2011 $ 9,803  $ 8,294  $ 1,038  $ 19,135

Cash payments (7,884)  (2,826)  (440)  (11,150)
Adjustments (576)  (260)  (297)  (1,133)
Other, principally foreign currency translation (564)  (281)  (23)  (868)

Balance at March 31, 2012 $ 779  $ 4,927  $ 278  $ 5,984

As of March 31, 2012, management expects the majority of the remaining severance and other reserves to be utilized by the end of fiscal 2013 and the
remaining facility exit cost reserves to be utilized by the end of fiscal 2015.
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AVNET, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

Fiscal 2010 and prior restructuring reserves

In fiscal 2010 and prior, the Company incurred restructuring, integration and other charges of which four restructuring plans are remaining. The
following table presents the activity during the first nine months of fiscal 2012 related to the remaining restructuring reserves that were established during
fiscal 2010 and prior.

 
Severance
Reserves  

Facility
Exit Costs  Other  Total

 (Thousands)
Balance at July 2, 2011 $ 316  $ 6,632  $ 1,966  $ 8,914

Cash payments (32)  (3,606)  (1,096)  (4,734)
Adjustments (36)  (383)  (10)  (429)
Other, principally foreign currency translation (20)  (60)  (119)  (199)

Balance at March 31, 2012 $ 228  $ 2,583  $ 741  $ 3,552

As of March 31, 2012, management expects the majority of the remaining severance and other reserves to be utilized by the end of fiscal 2014 and the
remaining facility exit cost reserves to be utilized by the end of fiscal 2016.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

For a description of the Company’s critical accounting policies and an understanding of the significant factors that influenced the Company’s
performance during the quarter ended March 31, 2012, this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
(“MD&A”) should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements, including the related notes, appearing in Item 1 of this Report, as well as
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended July 2, 2011.

There are references to the impact of foreign currency translation in the discussion of the Company’s results of operations. Results for the third quarter
of fiscal 2012 were impacted by the movement of foreign currency exchange rates in comparison to the third quarter of fiscal 2011. For example, the U.S.
Dollar has strengthened against the Euro by approximately 4% when comparing the third quarter of fiscal 2012 with the third quarter of fiscal 2011. However,
when comparing the first nine months of fiscal 2012 to the same period in fiscal 2011, exchange rates had less of an impact as, for example, the U.S. Dollar
weakened against the Euro by approximately 1%. When the weaker U.S. Dollar exchange rates of the current year are used to translate the results of
operations of Avnet’s subsidiaries denominated in foreign currencies, the resulting impact is an increase in U.S. Dollars of reported results. Conversely, when
the stronger U.S. Dollar exchange rates of the current year are used to translate the results of operations of Avnet’s subsidiaries denominated in foreign
currencies, the resulting impact is an decrease in U.S. Dollars of reported results. In the discussion that follows, this is referred to as the “translation impact of
changes in foreign currency exchange rates” and is also referred to as “constant currency.”

In addition to disclosing financial results that are determined in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”), the
Company also discloses certain non-GAAP financial information, including:

• Income or expense items as adjusted for the translation impact of changes in foreign currency exchange rates, as discussed above.

• Sales adjusted for certain items that impact the year-over-year analysis, which included: (i) the impact of acquisitions by adjusting Avnet’s prior
periods to include the sales of businesses acquired as if the acquisitions had occurred at the beginning of the period presented; (ii) the impact of
a divestiture by adjusting Avnet’s prior periods to exclude the sales of the business divested as if the divestiture had occurred at the beginning of
the period presented; and (iii) the impact of the transfer at the beginning of fiscal 2012 of the Latin America computing components business
from TS Americas to EM Americas, which is being managed as part of the EM embedded business. Sales taking into account the combination
of these adjustments are referred to as “pro forma sales” or “organic sales.”

• Operating income excluding restructuring, integration and other charges incurred in the third quarters and first nine months of fiscal 2012 and
fiscal 2011 (see Restructuring, Integration and Other Charges in this MD&A). The reconciliation to GAAP is presented in the following table.

 Third Quarters Ended  Nine Months Ended

 
March 31, 

2012  
April 2, 

2011  
March 31, 

2012  
April 2, 

2011
 (Thousands)
GAAP operating income $ 216,774  $ 240,737  $ 670,727  $ 662,801

Restructuring, integration and other charges 18,609  16,273  53,114  73,452

Adjusted operating income $ 235,383  $ 257,010  $ 723,841  $ 736,253

Management believes that providing this additional information is useful to the reader to better assess and understand operating performance, especially
when comparing results with previous periods or forecasting performance for future periods, primarily because management typically monitors the business
both including and excluding these adjustments to GAAP results. Management also uses these non-GAAP measures to establish operational goals and, in
some cases, for measuring performance for compensation purposes. However, analysis of results on a non-GAAP basis should be used as a complement to,
and in conjunction with, data presented in accordance with GAAP.
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OVERVIEW

Organization

Avnet, Inc., incorporated in New York in 1955, together with its consolidated subsidiaries (the “Company” or “Avnet”), is one of the world’s largest
industrial distributors, based on sales, of electronic components, enterprise computer and storage products and embedded subsystems. Avnet creates a vital
link in the technology supply chain that connects more than 300 of the world’s leading electronic component and computer product manufacturers and
software developers with a global customer base of more than 100,000 original equipment manufacturers (“OEMs”), electronic manufacturing services
(“EMS”) providers, original design manufacturers (“ODMs”) and value-added resellers (“VARs”). Avnet distributes electronic components, computer
products and software as received from its suppliers or with assembly or other value added by Avnet. Additionally, Avnet provides engineering design,
materials management and logistics services, system integration and configuration, and supply chain services that can be customized to meet the requirements
of both customers and suppliers.

Avnet has two primary operating groups — Electronics Marketing (“EM”) and Technology Solutions (“TS”). Both operating groups have operations in
each of the three major economic regions of the world: the Americas; Europe, the Middle East and Africa (“EMEA”); and Asia/Pacific, consisting of Asia,
Australia and New Zealand (“Asia” or “Asia/Pac”). A brief summary of each operating group is provided below:

• EM markets and sells semiconductors and interconnect, passive and electromechanical devices (“IP&E”) and embedded products for more than
300 of the world’s leading electronic component manufacturers. EM markets and sells its products and services to a diverse customer base serving
many end-markets including automotive, communications, computer hardware and peripheral, industrial and manufacturing, medical equipment,
military and aerospace. EM also offers an array of value-added services that help customers evaluate, design-in and procure electronic components
throughout the lifecycle of their technology products and systems. By working with EM from the design phase throughout new product
introduction and through the product lifecycle, customers and suppliers can accelerate their time to market and realize cost efficiencies in both the
design and manufacturing process.

• As a global IT solutions distributor, TS collaborates with its customers and suppliers to create and deliver services, software and hardware
solutions that address the business needs of end-user customers locally and around the world. TS focuses on the global value-added distribution of
enterprise computing servers and systems, software, storage, services and complex solutions from the world’s foremost technology manufacturers,
marketing and selling them to and through the VAR channel. TS also serves the worldwide OEM market for computing technology, system
integrators and non-PC OEMs that require embedded systems and solutions including engineering, product prototyping, integration and other
value-added services. The operating group has sales and marketing divisions dedicated to these customer segments as well as independent
software vendors.

Results of Operations

Executive Summary

Revenue for the third quarter of fiscal 2012 was $6.28 billion, a decrease of 5.9% from the third quarter of fiscal 2011 revenue of $6.67 billion, while
revenue on an organic basis was down 8.1% year over year. The prior year third quarter was particularly strong as the economic environment at that time
seemed to have hit a peak in the V-shaped recovery, particularly in EMEA. As a result, the Company experienced a year-over-year decrease in revenue
primarily due to declines in the EMEA region in both operating groups. Since that peak, the macro economic environment continued to be a challenge as the
Company's performance was impacted by a supply chain inventory correction during the first three quarters of fiscal 2012. Although the current economic
environment and the rate of recovery varies in each region, results for the quarter were in line with management's expectations as seasonal growth rates seem
to be returning to more normalized levels. EM organic revenue decreased 8.9% year over year in constant currency, which was the third consecutive quarter
of negative year-over-year organic growth. This decline was primarily a result of the comparison to the particularly strong prior year third quarter and the
supply chain inventory correction, as previously mentioned. However, EM's sequential organic revenue growth was at the low end of normal seasonality,
particularly in the western regions, and its book to bill ratio finished at parity for the quarter; thus, it appears the supply chain inventory correction is nearing
an end. TS organic revenue declined 4.3% in constant currency over the prior year third quarter. Despite this decline, TS increased gross profit margin and
operating income margin year over year driven primarily by the combination of a focus on improving the overall performance within the EMEA region,
including revenue selection, and the benefit from restructuring initiatives.
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Gross profit margin of 12.0% increased 21 basis points over prior year third quarter. EM gross profit margin was down 27 basis points year over year as
an increase in the EMEA region's gross profit margin was offset by a decline in the Americas. In addition, the regional mix of business impacted EM as the
EMEA region, which is a higher margin region, represented 29% of EM sales as compared with 34% in the third quarter of last year. The decline in the
Americas was primarily due to the effect of the transferring the lower gross profit margin Latin America computing components business from TS Americas
to EM Americas at the beginning of fiscal 2012. TS gross profit margin increased 80 basis points year over year driven by improvements in both the
Americas and EMEA regions, primarily due to the transfer of the Latin America business noted previously and a focus on the overall performance within the
EMEA region, including revenue selection, also noted previously.

Consolidated operating income margin was flat at 3.5% as compared with the prior year third quarter, which included restructuring, integration and
other charges in both periods. Excluding these charges, operating income margin was 3.8% as compared with 3.9% in the prior year third quarter as a decline
at EM offset improvement at TS. TS operating income margin increased 60 basis points year over year to 2.7%. EM operating income margin improved
sequentially by 31 basis points bringing it back within management's target range; however, it declined 56 basis points when compared with the particularly
strong prior year performance.

Sales

The table below provides the comparison of third quarter fiscal 2012 and 2011 sales for the Company and its operating groups. In addition, there were
several items that impacted the comparison of third quarter sales to sales in the prior year third quarter; therefore, the table below also provides pro forma (or
organic) sales which represents sales adjusted for (i) the impact of acquisitions by adjusting Avnet’s prior periods to include the sales of businesses acquired
as if the acquisitions had occurred at the beginning of the period presented; (ii) the impact of a divestiture by adjusting Avnet’s prior periods to exclude the
sales of the business divested as if the divestiture had occurred at the beginning of the period presented; and (iii) the impact of the transfer at the beginning of
fiscal 2012 of the Latin America computing components business from TS Americas to EM Americas which is being managed as part of the EM embedded
business. Sales, taking into account the combination of these adjustments, are referred to as “pro forma sales” or “organic sales.”

 
Q3-Fiscal FY

’12  
Q3-Fiscal FY

’11  
Year-Year
% Change  

Pro forma
Q3-Fiscal FY

’12  

Pro forma
Q3-Fiscal FY

’11  

Pro forma
Year-Year
% Change

 (Dollars in thousands)
Avnet, Inc. $ 6,280,557  $ 6,672,404  (5.9)%  $ 6,292,381  $ 6,848,968  (8.1)%

EM 3,756,849  3,925,236  (4.3)  3,758,271  4,176,105  (10.0)
TS 2,523,708  2,747,168  (8.1)  2,534,110  2,672,863  (5.2)

EM            
Americas $ 1,458,422  $ 1,316,244  10.8 %  $ 1,459,844  $ 1,465,817  (0.4)%
EMEA 1,091,701  1,328,541  (17.8)  —  1,330,423  (17.9)
Asia/Pacific 1,206,726  1,280,451  (5.8)  —  1,379,865  (12.5)

TS            
Americas $ 1,369,577  $ 1,506,590  (9.1)%  $ 1,379,509  $ 1,409,911  (2.2)%
EMEA 744,854  846,953  (12.1)  745,324  869,327  (14.3)
Asia/Pacific 409,277  393,625  4.0  —  —  —

Totals by Region            
Americas $ 2,827,999  $ 2,822,834  0.2 %  $ 2,839,353  $ 2,875,728  (1.3)%
EMEA 1,836,555  2,175,494  (15.6)  1,837,025  2,199,750  (16.5)
Asia/Pacific 1,616,003  1,674,076  (3.5)  —  1,773,490  (8.9)
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The following tables present the reconciliation of the reported sales to pro forma sales for the third quarters of fiscal 2012 and 2011.

Q3 Fiscal 2012  
As

Reported  
Acquisition

Sales(1)  
Pro forma

Sales
  (Thousands)

Avnet, Inc.  $ 6,280,557  $ 11,824  $ 6,292,381
EM Americas  1,458,422  1,422  1,459,844
TS Americas  1,369,577  9,932  1,379,509
TS EMEA  744,854  470  745,324

_____________________
(1) Includes the businesses acquired in January 2012 (see table below).

Q3 Fiscal 2011  
As

Reported  
Acquisition

Sales(1)  

Transfer of
TS Business

to EM  
Pro forma

Sales
  (Thousands)
Avnet, Inc.  $ 6,672,404  $ 176,564  $ —  $ 6,848,968

EM  3,925,236  127,703  123,166  4,176,105
TS  2,747,168  48,861  (123,166)  2,672,863

EM         
Americas  $ 1,316,244  $ 26,407  $ 123,166  $ 1,465,817
EMEA  1,328,541  1,882  —  1,330,423
Asia/Pacific  1,280,451  99,414  —  1,379,865

TS         
Americas  $ 1,506,590  $ 26,487  $ (123,166)  $ 1,409,911
EMEA  846,953  22,374  —  869,327

_____________________
(1) Includes the following acquisitions which impacted the third quarter year-over-year comparison:

Amosdec acquired in July 2011 in the TS EMEA region

Prospect Technology acquired in August 2011 in the EM Asia region

JC Tally Trading Co and its subsidiary acquired in August 2011 in the EM Asia region

DE2 acquired in November 2011 in the EM EMEA region

Round2 acquired in January 2012 in the EM Americas region

Unidux Electronics Limited (Singapore) acquired in January 2012 in the EM Asia region

Canvas Systems acquired in January 2012 in the TS Americas and TS EMEA regions

Pinnacle Data Systems acquired in January 2012 in the EM Americas region

A controlling interest in a non-wholly owned entity, consolidated in the EM Americas region as of January 2012

Consolidated sales for the third quarter of fiscal 2012 were $6.28 billion, a decrease of 5.9%, or $391.8 million, from the prior year third quarter
consolidated sales of $6.67 billion. Organic sales (as defined earlier in this MD&A) decreased 8.1%, which was primarily due to a double-digit decline in the
EMEA region in both operating groups. On a sequential basis, organic sales decreased 7.2% and decreased 6.6% excluding the translation impact of changes
in foreign currency exchange rates, which is at the low end of normal seasonality of down 4% to 7% for a March quarter.

EM sales of $3.76 billion in the third quarter of fiscal 2012 decreased 4.3% from the prior year third quarter sales of $3.93 billion. EM organic revenue
in constant currency decreased 8.9% year over year due to the combination of exceptionally high growth last year driven by the V-shaped recovery in
electronic components and the subsequent supply chain correction which has led to negative organic growth in EM for the first nine months of fiscal 2012.
On a regional basis, EMEA and Asia experienced
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double-digit year-over-year organic revenue declines, while the Americas was essentially flat. On a sequential basis, EM organic revenue growth was 3.9% in
constant currency, which is a return to more normal seasonal growth for EM of up 4% to up 7% for a March quarter. The inventory correction that caused
sequential revenue growth to be below normal seasonality for the past two quarters appears to be nearing an end as the book to bill ratio for EM continued to
improve through the quarter in all three regions and was at parity for the quarter.

TS sales of $2.52 billion in the third quarter of fiscal 2012 decreased 8.1% from the prior year third quarter sales of $2.75 billion. The year-over-year
revenue decrease was due primarily to the Americas and EMEA regions which were down 9.1% and 12.1%, respectively, partially offset by growth of 4.0%
in Asia. Organic revenue decreased 5.2% year over year primarily due to the Americas, which decreased 2.2%, and the EMEA region, which decreased
11.3% in constant currency. The double-digit decline in EMEA was due to general economic conditions impacting IT spending and, to a lesser extent, some
portfolio actions around revenue selection. These declines were partially offset by an increase of 4.0% in Asia. On a product level, double-digit, year-over-
year growth in industry standard servers and services was offset by a decline in microprocessors and other computing components. On a sequential basis,
organic revenue decreased 19.0%, which was within the range of typical seasonality for TS of down 16% to 20% for a March quarter.

Consolidated sales for the first nine months of fiscal 2012 were $19.40 billion, down 1.1%, as compared with sales of $19.62 billion for the first nine
months of fiscal 2011. On an organic basis excluding the impact of changes in foreign currency exchange rates, sales for the first nine months of fiscal 2012
were down 2.5% as compared with the same period in the prior year. EM sales of $11.17 billion for the first nine months of fiscal 2012 were essentially flat as
compared with the first nine months of the prior year. Growth in EM's Americas region was offset by declines in the EMEA and Asia regions. EM organic
revenue was down 5.2% year over year as declines in the EMEA and Asia regions were partially offset by growth in the Americas. TS sales of $8.23 billion
for the first nine months of fiscal 2012 were down 3.4% as compared with the first nine months of fiscal 2011 and organic revenue was up 1.5% over the
same period in prior year, primarily driven by sales growth in the Americas and Asia, which was mostly offset by a decline in EMEA.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margins

Consolidated gross profit for the third quarter of fiscal 2012 was $753.8 million, a decrease of $32.8 million, or 4.2%, from the prior year third quarter
and decreased 6.0% on a pro forma basis in constant currency. Gross profit margin of 12.0% improved 21 basis points over the prior year third quarter and
improved 29 basis points sequentially. EM gross profit margin was down 27 basis points year over year, as an increase in the EMEA gross profit margin was
offset by the effect of transferring the lower gross profit margin Latin America computing components business from TS Americas to EM Americas at the
beginning of fiscal 2012. In addition, the regional mix of business was slightly more skewed to the lower margin regions in the current year third quarter as
the higher gross margin EMEA region represented 29% of the overall EM revenue mix as compared with 34% in the prior year third quarter. On a sequential
basis, EM gross profit margin remained flat as the positive impact of the geographic mix shift to the higher gross profit margin EMEA region was offset by a
decline in the Americas embedded business which had benefited from a temporary lift in margins in hard disk drives in the December quarter. TS gross profit
margin improved 80 basis points year over year and was essentially flat sequentially. The year-over-year improvement was driven by the western regions.
This was the third consecutive quarter in which the EMEA region improved its gross profit margin more than 100 basis points year over year, which was
driven by a focus on improving the overall performance within the region, including revenue selection.

Consolidated gross profit and gross profit margins were $2.29 billion and 11.8%, respectively, for the first nine months of fiscal 2012 as compared with
$2.28 billion and 11.6%, respectively, for the first nine months of fiscal 2011. For the first nine months of fiscal 2012, EM gross profit margin declined 21
basis points year over year and TS gross profit margin improved 59 basis points year over year driven largely by the same factors as discussed in the quarterly
gross profit margin analysis.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses (“SG&A expenses”) were $518.4 million in the third quarter of fiscal 2012, a decrease of $11.2 million, or
2.1%, from the prior year third quarter. This $11.2 million decrease consisted of (i) approximately $21 million related to a decrease in expenses for the
existing business due primarily to cost reduction actions taken, and (ii) approximately $7 million related to a decrease due to the translation impact of changes
in foreign currency exchange rates, partially offset by (iii) an increase of approximately $21 million related to expenses from businesses acquired. Metrics
that management monitors with respect to its operating expenses are SG&A expenses as a percentage of sales and as a percentage of gross profit. In the third
quarter of fiscal 2012, SG&A expenses as a percentage of sales were 8.3% and were 68.8% as a percentage of gross profit as compared with 7.9% and 67.3%,
respectively, in the third quarter of fiscal 2011. SG&A expenses as a percentage of gross profit at TS decreased over 400 basis points year over year. EM
SG&A expenses as a percentage of gross profit increased 326 basis points from the prior year near record low, which was attributable to the strong operating
leverage in a particularly high growth environment in the prior year. SG&A expenses for the first nine months of fiscal 2012 were $1.57 billion, or 8.1% of
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consolidated sales, as compared with $1.55 billion, or 7.9% of consolidated sales, in the first nine months of fiscal 2011. SG&A expenses were 68.4% of
gross profit in the first nine months of fiscal 2012 as compared with 67.8% in the first nine months of 2011.

Restructuring, Integration and Other Charges

During the third quarter of fiscal 2012, the Company continued to take certain actions to reduce costs in both operating groups in response to current
market conditions and incurred acquisition and integration costs associated with recently acquired businesses. As a result, the Company recorded
restructuring, integration and other charges of $18.6 million pre-tax, $13.7 million after tax and $0.10 per share on a diluted basis for the third quarter.
Restructuring charges of $11.2 million pre-tax consisted of $6.7 million for severance, $3.1 million for facility exit costs and fixed asset write downs and $1.4
million for other restructuring charges. Pre-tax integration costs and acquisition transaction costs were $4.0 million and $4.2 million, respectively. In addition,
the Company recorded a credit of $0.8 million pre-tax to adjust reserves related to prior year restructuring activity that were no longer required.

During the first nine months of fiscal 2012, the Company recorded restructuring, integration and other charges of $53.1 million pre-tax, $37.3 million
after tax and $0.25 per share on a diluted basis. Restructuring charges of $40.2 million pre-tax consisted of $26.5 million for severance, $10.5 million for
facility exit costs and fixed asset write downs and $3.1 million for other restructuring charges. Pre-tax integration costs and acquisition transaction costs were
$7.4 million and $7.3 million, respectively. In addition, the Company recorded a credit of $1.7 million pre-tax to adjust reserves related to prior year
restructuring activity that were no longer required.

Severance charges recorded in the first nine months of fiscal 2012 related to over 550 employees in sales, administrative and finance functions in
connection with the cost reduction actions taken in all three regions in both operating groups with employee reductions of approximately 350 in EM and 200
in TS. Facility exit costs for vacated facilities related to nine facilities in the Americas, five in EMEA and twelve in Asia and consisted of reserves for
remaining lease liabilities and the write-down of leasehold improvements and other fixed assets. The Company expects to generate approximately $35 million
to $45 million in annualized savings by the end of fiscal 2012 as a result of the restructuring initiatives implemented during the first nine months of fiscal
2012.

Integration costs incurred related to the integration of acquired businesses and incremental costs incurred as part of the consolidation and closure of
certain office and warehouse locations. Integration costs included IT consulting costs for system integration assistance, facility moving costs, legal fees,
travel, meeting, marketing and communication costs that were incrementally incurred as a result of the integration activity. Also included in integration costs
are incremental salary costs associated with the consolidation and closure activities as well as costs associated with acquisition activity, primarily related to
the acquired businesses' personnel who were retained by Avnet for extended periods following the close of the acquisitions solely to assist in the integration
of the acquired businesses' IT systems and administrative and logistics operations into those of Avnet. These identified personnel have no other meaningful
day-to-day operational responsibilities outside of the integration effort. Transaction costs consisted primarily of professional fees for brokering the
acquisitions, due diligence work and other legal costs.

Comparatively, in the third quarter of fiscal 2011, restructuring, integration and other charges amounted to $16.3 million pre-tax, $11.9 million after tax
and $0.08 per share on a diluted basis and were due primarily to the integration of the acquired Bell business into the existing EM Americas, TS Americas
and TS EMEA regions and, to a lesser extent, other cost reduction actions. These pre-tax charges included the following: $4.4 million of severance, $3.3
million of facility exit costs, $8.0 million of integration costs, $3.5 million of acquisition transaction costs, $0.9 million of other charges, and a reversal of
$3.8 million to adjust reserves related to prior year restructuring activity which were no longer required.

During the first nine months of fiscal 2011, restructuring, integration and other charges amounted to $73.5 million pre-tax, $52.9 million after tax and
$0.34 per share on a diluted basis. The pre-tax charges consisted of: $23.4 million for severance, $16.3 million for facility exit costs for lease liabilities, fixed
asset write-downs and other related charges associated with vacated facilities, $24.1 million for integration costs, $15.6 million for transactions costs
associated with acquisitions and $1.8 million for other charges. The Company also recorded a credit of $7.8 million related to the release of liabilities
associated with a prior acquisition and to adjust reserves related to prior year restructuring activity which were no longer required.

Operating Income

During the third quarter of fiscal 2012, the Company generated operating income of $216.8 million, down 10.0%, as compared with $240.7 million in
the prior year third quarter. Consolidated operating income margin was 3.5% as compared with 3.6% in the prior year third quarter. Both periods included
restructuring, integration and other charges as described in Restructuring, Integration and Other Charges above. Excluding these charges from both periods,
operating income was $235.4 million, or 3.8% of sales, in the third quarter of fiscal 2012 as compared with $257.0 million, or 3.9% of sales, in the prior year
third quarter. EM

21



operating income of $194.3 million was down 13.6% year over year and operating income margin declined 56 basis points year over year to 5.2%. This
decline in EM operating income margin was primarily due to the negative operating leverage related to the year-over-year decline in sales as compared with
the positive operating leverage last year due to the particularly strong sales growth. This effect was somewhat mitigated by cost reduction actions taken in
response to business conditions. While EM's operating profit margin declined year over year, it improved 31 basis points sequentially and is back within
management's target range of 5.0% to 5.5% after dipping below that range in the December quarter. TS operating income of $67.9 million increased 18.5%
year over year and operating income margin increased 60 basis points to 2.7% primarily due to improvement in the western regions, which was driven by the
combination of higher gross profit margins and the benefits from restructuring initiatives. Corporate operating expenses were $26.8 million in the third
quarter of fiscal 2012 as compared with $25.1 million in the third quarter of fiscal 2011.

Operating income for the first nine months of 2012 was $670.7 million, or 3.5% of consolidated sales, as compared with $662.8 million, or 3.4% of
consolidated sales for the first nine months of fiscal 2011. The increase in operating income margin as compared with the first nine months of fiscal 2011 was
similarly a function of the factors discussed in the quarterly analysis. In addition, during the first nine months of fiscal 2012, restructuring, integration and
other charges amounted to $53.1 million pre-tax, $37.3 million million after tax and $0.25 per share on a diluted basis as compared with $73.5 million pre-
tax, $52.9 million after tax and $0.34 per share for the first nine months of the prior year.

Interest Expense and Other Income (Expense), Net

Interest expense for the third quarter of fiscal 2012 was $23.6 million, which was flat compared with the same period of the prior year. Interest expense
for the first nine months of fiscal 2012 was $67.6 million, down $2.2 million or 3.2%, as compared with interest expense of $69.8 million for the first nine
months of fiscal 2011. The decrease in interest expense was primarily due to (i) the pay off of $104.4 million of 3.75% convertible debt in March 2011 and
(ii) lower interest expense incurred under foreign bank credit facilities as compared with the same periods in the prior year. See Financing Transactions for
further discussion of the Company’s outstanding debt.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2012, the Company recognized $3.2 million of other income as compared with $2.3 million in the prior year. During
the first nine months of fiscal 2012, the Company incurred $1.4 million in other expense as compared with other income of $5.3 million in the first nine
months of fiscal 2011. The year-over-year increase in other expense was due primarily to foreign exchange losses.

Gain on Bargain Purchase and Other

During the third quarter of fiscal 2012, the Company recognized a gain on bargain purchase of $4.5 million pre- and after tax and $0.03 per share on a
diluted basis. In January 2012, the Company acquired Unidux Electronics Limited, a Singapore publicly traded company, through a tender offer. After
assessing the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, the consideration paid was below the fair value of the acquired net assets and, as a result, the Company
recognized the gain.

In addition to the gain on bargain purchase mentioned above, during the first nine months of fiscal 2012, the Company recognized other charges of $1.4
million pre-tax, $0.9 million after tax and $0.01 per share on a diluted basis related to the write-down of an investment in a small technology company and the
write-off of certain deferred financing costs associated with the early termination of a credit facility (see Financing Transactions for further discussion).

During the first quarter of fiscal 2011, the Company acquired Unidux, a Japanese publicly traded company, through a tender offer. After reassessing all
assets acquired and liabilities assumed, the consideration paid was below the fair value of the acquired net assets and, as a result, the Company recognized a
gain on bargain purchase of $31.0 million pre- and after tax and $0.20 per share on a diluted basis. In addition, the Company recognized other charges of
$2.0 million pre-tax primarily related to an impairment of buildings in EMEA. During the third quarter of fiscal 2011, the Company recognized a loss of $6.3
million pre-tax, $3.9 million after tax and $0.02 per share on a diluted basis related to the write-down of prior investments in smaller technology start-up
companies.

Income Tax Provision

The Company’s effective tax rate on its income before income taxes was 26.6% in the third quarter of fiscal 2012 as compared with 29.1% in the third
quarter of fiscal 2011. During the third quarter of fiscal 2012, the Company's effective tax rate was favorably impacted by releases of valuation allowances,
favorable audit settlements, and releases of reserves.   During the third quarter of fiscal 2011, the Company's effective tax rate was negatively impacted by
increases to reserves, partially offset by releases of valuation allowances.
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For the first nine months of 2012 and 2011, the Company's effective tax rate was 28.3% and 30.7%, respectively. The decrease is a result of a favorable
tax adjustment, primarily related to releases of valuation allowance and favorable audit settlements, partially offset by increases to reserves.  During the first
nine months of fiscal 2011, the Company recognized an income tax adjustment of $19.8 million primarily related to the non-cash write-off of a deferred tax
asset associated with the integration of acquired legal entities which was partially offset by the non-taxable gain on a bargain purchase as mentioned above.

The tax rate is impacted primarily by the statutory tax rates of the countries in which the Company operates and the related levels of income in those
jurisdictions as well as assessment of tax risks that are common to multinational enterprises and assessments of realizability of deferred tax assets and the
associated establishment or release of tax valuation allowances.

In April 2012, the Company received a U.S. Internal Revenue Service Revenue Agent's Report related to the tax audit of an acquired company which
requires Joint Committee review and approval. If approved, the Company will recognize additional net operating losses as determined under the settlement as
well as the release of related reserves.  As a result, it is reasonably possible that within the next twelve months the Company may record a tax benefit in the
range of $15.0 million to $17.0 million, which would favorably impact the effective tax rate in the period in which the matter is effectively settled.

Net Income

As a result of the factors described in the preceding sections of this MD&A, the Company’s consolidated net income for the third quarter of fiscal 2012
was $147.6 million, or $1.00 per share on a diluted basis, as compared with $151.0 million, or $0.98 per share on a diluted basis, in the prior year third
quarter. Net income for the first nine months of fiscal 2012 was $433.6 million, or $2.88 per share on a diluted basis, as compared with $430.2 million, or
$2.79 per share on a diluted basis for the first nine months of fiscal 2011.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash Flow

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

During the third quarter and first nine months of fiscal 2012, the Company generated $23.6 million and $269.4 million, respectively, of cash from its
operating activities as compared with cash generated of $188.1 million and cash usage of $3.4 million in the third quarter and first nine months of fiscal 2011,
respectively. These results are comprised of: (i) cash flow generated from net income excluding non-cash and other reconciling items, which includes the add-
back of depreciation and amortization, deferred income taxes, stock-based compensation and other non-cash items (primarily the provision for doubtful
accounts and periodic pension costs) and (ii) cash flow used for working capital, excluding cash and cash equivalents. Cash generated by working capital
during the third quarter of fiscal 2012 included a decrease in receivables and inventory of $175.3 million and $73.1 million, respectively, offset by a decrease
in payables of $398.7 million. The settlement of payables, which were incurred during TS' seasonally strong December quarter, was partially offset by cash
collections on the similarly seasonally strong December quarter sales. At EM, inventory decreased and the inventory levels as of the end of the quarter are
consistent with growth expectations. Net days outstanding continues to be at or near pre-recession levels as there have not been any significant change in
terms provided to customers and the Company has not experienced an overall deterioration in timely customer payments. Comparatively, cash used for
working capital during the third quarter of fiscal 2011 consisted of a reduction in payables of $250.3 million, partially offset by a reduction in accounts
receivable and inventory of $153.6 million and $78.4 million, respectively.

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

During the third quarter and first nine months of fiscal 2012, the Company received net proceeds of $110.4 million and $578.5 million, respectively,
primarily from borrowings under the accounts receivable securitization program and bank credit facilities. In addition, during the third quarter and first nine
months of fiscal 2012, the Company used $27.9 million and $248.8 million, respectively, of cash to repurchase common stock under the $500 million share
repurchase program authorized by the Board in August 2011 (see Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds in this Form 10-Q).
During the third quarter and first nine months of fiscal 2011, the Company used $89.7 million of cash to repay debt primarily due to the repayment of $104.4
million of 3.75% Notes due March 5, 2024 which were acquired in the Bell acquisition and tendered for in March 2011. For the first nine months of fiscal
2011, the Company received proceeds of $431.2 million, primarily from borrowings under the accounts receivable securitization program and bank credit
facilities.

Cash Flow from Investing Activities

During the third quarter and first nine months of fiscal 2012, the Company used $122.0 million and $229.5 million,
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respectively, of cash for acquisitions, net of cash acquired, and $24.5 million and $95.4 million, respectively, for capital expenditures primarily related to
system development costs and computer hardware and software purchases. During the third quarter and first nine months of fiscal 2011, the Company used
$64.1 million and $691.0 million, respectively, of cash for acquisitions, net of cash acquired, and $35.0 million and $105.2 million, respectively, for capital
expenditures primarily related to system development costs and computer hardware and software purchases. During the third quarter of fiscal 2011, the
Company received $10.5 million of proceeds, net, associated with a divestiture.

Capital Structure and Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes the Company’s capital structure as of the end of the third quarter of fiscal 2012 with a comparison to fiscal 2011 year-
end:

 
March 31, 

2012  
% of Total

Capitalization  
July 2, 

2011  
% of Total

Capitalization
 (Dollars in thousands)
Short-term debt $ 934,450  15.1%  $ 243,079  4.4%
Long-term debt 1,183,793  19.2  1,273,509  22.8

Total debt 2,118,243  34.3  1,516,588  27.2
Shareholders’ equity 4,051,779  65.7  4,056,070  72.8

Total capitalization $ 6,170,022  100.0  $ 5,572,658  100.0

For a description of the Company’s long-term debt and lease commitments for the next five years and thereafter, see Long-Term Contractual
Obligations appearing in Item 7 of the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended July 2, 2011. With the exception of the Company’s debt
transactions discussed herein, there are no material changes to this information outside of normal lease payments.

The Company does not currently have any material commitments for capital expenditures.

Financing Transactions

During the second quarter of fiscal 2012, the Company entered into a five-year $1.0 billion senior unsecured revolving credit facility (the "2012 Credit
Facility") with a syndicate of banks which expires November 2016. In connection with the 2012 Credit Facility, the Company terminated its existing
unsecured $500.0 million credit facility (the "2008 Credit Facility") which was to expire in September 2012. Under the 2012 Credit Facility, the Company
may elect from various interest rate options, currencies and maturities. As of the end of the third quarter of fiscal 2012, there were $21.8 million in
borrowings outstanding under the 2012 Credit Facility included in “long-term debt” in the consolidated financial statements. In addition, there were $17.1
million in letters of credit issued under the 2012 Credit Facility which represent a utilization of the 2012 Credit Facility capacity but are not recorded in the
consolidated balance sheet as the letters of credit are not debt. As of July 2, 2011, there were $122.1 million in borrowings outstanding included in “long-term
debt” in the consolidated financial statements and $16.6 million in letters of credit issued under the 2008 Credit Facility.

In August 2011, the Company amended its accounts receivable securitization program (the "Securitization Program" or “Program”) with a group of
financial institutions to allow the Company to sell, on a revolving basis, an undivided interest of up to $750.0 million ($600.0 million prior to the amendment)
in eligible receivables while retaining a subordinated interest in a portion of the receivables. The Program does not qualify for sale treatment and, as a result,
any borrowings under the Program are recorded as debt on the consolidated balance sheet. The Program contains certain covenants, all of which the Company
was in compliance with as of March 31, 2012. The Program has a one year term that expires in August 2012. There were $750.0 million in borrowings
outstanding under the Program at March 31, 2012 and $160.0 million outstanding at July 2, 2011.
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Notes outstanding at March 31, 2012 consisted of:

• $300.0 million of 5.875% Notes due March 15, 2014

• $250.0 million of 6.00% Notes due September 1, 2015

• $300.0 million of 6.625% Notes due September 15, 2016

• $300.0 million of 5.875% Notes due June 15, 2020

In addition to its primary financing arrangements, the Company has several small lines of credit in various locations to fund the short-term working
capital, foreign exchange, overdraft and letter of credit needs of its wholly owned subsidiaries in Europe, Asia and Canada. Avnet generally guarantees its
subsidiaries’ obligations under these facilities.

Covenants and Conditions

The 2012 Credit Facility contains certain covenants with various limitations on debt incurrence, dividends, investments and capital expenditures and
also includes financial covenants requiring the Company to maintain minimum interest coverage and leverage ratios. Management does not believe that the
covenants in the 2012 Credit Facility limit the Company’s ability to pursue its intended business strategy or future financing needs. The Company was in
compliance with all covenants of the 2012 Credit Facility as of March 31, 2012.

The Securitization Program requires the Company to maintain certain minimum interest coverage and leverage ratios in order to continue utilizing the
Program. The Program also contains certain covenants relating to the quality of the receivables sold. If these conditions are not met, the Company may not be
able to borrow any additional funds and the financial institutions may consider this an amortization event, as defined in the agreement, which would permit
the financial institutions to liquidate the accounts receivables sold to cover any outstanding borrowings. Circumstances that could affect the Company’s
ability to meet the required covenants and conditions of the Program include the Company’s ongoing profitability and various other economic, market and
industry factors. Management does not believe that the covenants under the Program limit the Company’s ability to pursue its intended business strategy or
future financing needs. The Company was in compliance with all covenants of the Program as of March 31, 2012.

See Liquidity below for further discussion of the Company’s availability under these various facilities.

Liquidity

As mentioned previously, the Company amended its accounts receivable securitization program in August 2011 to increase the borrowing capacity from
$600.0 million to $750.0 million. In addition, during the second quarter of fiscal 2012, the Company entered into a five-year $1.0 billion senior unsecured
revolving credit facility and terminated its existing $500 million facility. The Company had total borrowing capacity of $1.75 billion at March 31, 2012 under
the 2012 Credit Facility and the Program. There were $21.8 million in borrowings outstanding and $17.1 million in letters of credit issued under the 2012
Credit Facility and $750.0 million outstanding under the Program, resulting in $961.1 million of net availability at the end of the third quarter. During the
third quarter of fiscal 2012, the Company had an average daily balance outstanding under the 2012 Credit Facility of approximately $135 million and
approximately $670 million under the Program. During the third quarter of fiscal 2011, the Company had an average daily balance outstanding under the
2008 Credit Facility of approximately $175 million and approximately $490 million under the Program.

The Company had cash and cash equivalents of $940.1 million as of March 31, 2012, of which $852.1 million was held outside the U.S. As of July 2,
2011, the Company had cash and cash equivalents of $675.3 million, of which $613.2 million was held outside of the U.S. Liquidity is subject to many
factors, such as normal business operations as well as general economic, financial, competitive, legislative, and regulatory factors that are beyond the
Company’s control. Cash balances generated and held in foreign locations are used for on-going working capital, capital expenditure needs and to support
acquisitions. These balances are currently expected to be permanently reinvested outside the U.S. If these funds were needed for general corporate use in the
U.S., the Company would incur significant income taxes to repatriate cash held in foreign locations but only to the extent the repatriated cash is in excess of
outstanding intercompany loans due to Avnet, Inc. from the foreign subsidiaries. In addition, local government regulations may restrict the Company’s ability
to move funds among various locations under certain circumstances. Management does not believe such restrictions would limit the Company’s ability to
pursue its intended business strategy.

During the first nine months of fiscal 2012, the Company utilized $229.5 million of cash, net of cash acquired, for acquisitions. The Company has been
making and expects to continue to make strategic investments through acquisition activity to the extent the investments strengthen Avnet’s competitive
position and meet management’s return on capital thresholds.
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In addition to continuing to make investments in acquisitions, the Company may repurchase up to an aggregate of $500 million of shares of the
Company’s common stock through a share repurchase program approved by the Board of Directors in August 2011. The Company plans to repurchase stock
from time to time at the discretion of management, subject to strategic considerations, market conditions and other factors. The Company may terminate or
limit the stock repurchase program at any time without prior notice. The timing and actual number of shares purchased will depend on a variety of factors
such as price, corporate and regulatory requirements, and prevailing market conditions. Since inception of the program in August 2011 through the end of the
third quarter of fiscal 2012, the Company repurchased 8.8 million shares at average market price of $28.35 per share for total cost of $248.8 million. Shares
repurchased were retired.

During periods of weakening demand in the electronic component and enterprise computer solutions industry, the Company typically generates cash
from operating activities. Conversely, the Company is also more likely to use operating cash flows for working capital requirements during periods of higher
growth. During the third quarter and first nine months of fiscal 2012, the Company generated $23.6 million and $269.4 million, respectively, of cash from
operations and has generated $550.9 million of cash from operations over the trailing twelve month period. Management believes that Avnet’s borrowing
capacity, its current cash availability and the Company’s expected ability to generate operating cash flows in the future are sufficient to meet its projected
financing needs.

COMPARATIVE ANALYSIS — LIQUIDITY
(Dollars in millions)

The following table highlights the Company’s liquidity and related ratios as of the end of the third quarter of fiscal 2012 with a comparison to the fiscal
2011 year-end:

 
March 31, 

2012  
July 2, 

2011  
Percentage

Change
Current Assets $ 8,305.2  $ 8,227.2   0.9 %  
Quick Assets 5,598.9  5,439.6   2.9  
Current Liabilities 4,825.7  4,477.7   7.8  
Working Capital (1) 3,479.5  3,749.5   (7.2)  
Total Debt 2,118.2  1,516.6   39.7  
Total Capital (total debt plus total shareholders’ equity) 6,170.0  5,572.7   10.7  
Quick Ratio 1.2:1  1.2:1     
Working Capital Ratio 1.7:1  1.8:1     
Debt to Total Capital 34.3%  27.2%     

(1) This calculation of working capital is defined as current assets less current liabilities.

The Company’s quick assets (consisting of cash and cash equivalents and receivables) increased 2.9% and current assets increased 0.9% from July 2,
2011 to March 31, 2012 due primarily to the increase in cash and cash equivalents since the prior fiscal year end which was partially offset by the impact of
the change in foreign currency exchange spot rates at March 31, 2012 as compared with July 2, 2011. Current liabilities increased 7.8% primarily due to an
increase in short-term borrowings partially offset by a decrease in accounts payable and the impact of the change in foreign currency exchange spot rates. As
a result of the factors noted above, total working capital decreased by 7.2% during the first nine months of fiscal 2012. Total debt increased by 39.7%
primarily due to the increase in short-term borrowings, total capital increased 10.7% and the debt to capital ratio increased as compared with July 2, 2011 to
34.3%.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued authoritative guidance that requires an entity to disclose information about
offsetting and related arrangements to enable users of its financial statements to understand the effect of those arrangements on its financial position. This
guidance is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013 and interim periods within those annual periods. The adoption of this
guidance may expand existing disclosure requirements, which the Company is currently evaluating.
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The Company seeks to reduce earnings and cash flow volatility associated with changes in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates by
entering into financial arrangements from time to time, which are intended to provide a hedge against all or a portion of the risks associated with such
volatility. The Company continues to have exposure to such risks to the extent they are not hedged.

See Item 7A, Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk, in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended July 2,
2011 for further discussion of market risks associated with interest rates and foreign currency exchange. Avnet’s exposure to foreign exchange risks have not
changed materially since July 2, 2011 as the Company continues to hedge the majority of its foreign exchange exposures. Thus, any increase or decrease in
fair value of the Company’s foreign exchange contracts is generally offset by an opposite effect on the related hedged position.

See Liquidity and Capital Resources — Financing Transactions appearing in Item 2 of this Form 10-Q for further discussion of the Company’s
financing facilities and capital structure. As of March 31, 2012, 54% of the Company’s debt bears interest at a fixed rate and 46% of the Company’s debt
bears interest at variable rates. Therefore, a hypothetical 1.0% (100 basis points) increase in interest rates would result in a $2.4 million impact on income
before income taxes in the Company’s consolidated statement of operations for the quarter ended March 31, 2012.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

The Company’s management, including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, have evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s
disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange
Act”)) as of the end of the reporting period covered by this quarterly report on Form 10-Q. Based on such evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer have concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by this quarterly report on Form 10-Q, the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures are effective such that material information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act
is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified by the Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms and is
accumulated and communicated to management, including the Company’s principal executive officer and principal financial officer, as appropriate to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2012, the Company implemented an ERP system to support a business in the Americas. This implementation has
resulted in changes to certain internal controls over financial reporting. The Company performed pre- and post-implementation procedures to ensure the
effectiveness of the internal controls over financial reporting. There were no other changes to the Company’s internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Rule 13a-15(f) of the Exchange Act) that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting.

27



PART II

OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings

As a result primarily of certain former manufacturing operations, Avnet has incurred and may have future liability under various federal, state and local
environmental laws and regulations, including those governing pollution and exposure to, and the handling, storage and disposal of, hazardous substances.
For example, under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as amended (“CERCLA”) and similar state laws,
Avnet is and may be liable for the costs of cleaning up environmental contamination on or from certain of its current or former properties, and at off-site
locations where the Company disposed of wastes in the past. Such laws may impose joint and several liability. Typically, however, the costs for cleanup at
such sites are allocated among potentially responsible parties based upon each party’s relative contribution to the contamination, and other factors.

Pursuant to SEC regulations, including but not limited to Item 103 of Regulation S-K, the Company regularly assesses the status of and developments
in pending environmental legal proceedings to determine whether any such proceedings should be identified specifically in this discussion of legal
proceedings, and has concluded that no particular pending environmental legal proceeding requires public disclosure. Based on the information known to
date, management believes that the Company has appropriately accrued in its consolidated financial statements for its share of the estimated costs associated
with the environmental clean up of sites in which the Company is participating.

The Company and/or its subsidiaries are also parties to various other legal proceedings arising from time to time in the normal course of business.
While litigation is subject to inherent uncertainties, management currently believes that the ultimate outcome of these proceedings, individually and in the
aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position, cash flow or results of operations.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

This Report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended and Section 21E of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, with respect to the financial condition, results of operations and business of the Company. You can find many
of these statements by looking for words like “believes,” “plans,” “expects,” “anticipates,” “should,” “will,” “may,” “estimates” or similar expressions in this
Report or in documents incorporated by reference in this Report. These forward-looking statements are subject to numerous assumptions, risks and
uncertainties. You should understand that the following important factors, in addition to those discussed elsewhere in this Quarterly Report and in the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended July 2, 2011, could affect the Company’s future results, and could cause those results or
other outcomes to differ materially from those expressed or implied in the forward-looking statements:

• the effect of global economic conditions, including the current global economic uncertainty;

• general economic and business conditions (domestic and foreign) affecting Avnet’s financial performance and, indirectly, Avnet’s credit ratings,
debt covenant compliance, and liquidity and access to financing;

• competitive pressures among distributors of electronic components and computer products resulting in increased competition for existing
customers or otherwise;

• adverse effects on our supply chain, shipping costs, customers and suppliers, including as a result of issues caused by natural and weather-related
disasters;

• risks relating to our international sales and operations, including risks relating to the ability to repatriate funds, foreign currency fluctuations,
duties and taxes, and compliance with international and U.S. laws that apply to our international operations;

• cyclicality in the technology industry, particularly in the semiconductor sector;

• allocation of products by suppliers; and

• legislative or regulatory changes affecting Avnet’s businesses.

Any forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date on which that statement is made. Except as required by law, the Company assumes no
obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect events or circumstances that occur after the date on which the statement is made.
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The discussion of Avnet’s business and operations should be read together with the risk factors contained in Item 1A of its 2011 Annual Report on Form
10-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, which describe various risks and uncertainties to which the Company is or may become subject.
These risks and uncertainties have the potential to affect Avnet’s business, financial condition, results of operations, cash flows, strategies or prospects in a
material and adverse manner. As of March 31, 2012, there have been no material changes to the risk factors set forth in the Company’s 2011 Annual Report
on Form 10-K.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

In August 2011, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the repurchase of up to $500 million of the Company’s common stock through a share
repurchase program. The following table includes the Company’s monthly purchases of Avnet's common stock during the third quarter ended March 31, 2012
under the share repurchase program, which is part of a publicly announced plan, and purchases made on the open market to obtain shares for the Company’s
Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”), which is not part of a publicly announced plan:

  
Total Number

of Shares Purchased (1)

 
Average Price Paid per

Share

 
Total Number of

Shares Purchased
as Part of Publicly
Announced Plans

or Programs

 
Approximate Dollar
Value of Shares That

May Yet Be Purchased
Under the Plans

or Programs
Period

    
January  714,200  $ 32.25  710,000  $ 251,174,000
February  5,400  $ 35.61  —  $ 251,174,000
March  4,400  $ 36.24  —  $ 251,174,000
_____________________
(1) Includes purchases of Avnet’s common stock associated with the Company’s ESPP as follows: 4,200 shares in January, 5,400 shares in February and

4,400 shares in March.
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Item 6. Exhibits

Exhibit   
Number  Exhibit

   
10.1*  Amendment No. 3, dated as of March 7, 2012, to the Second Amended and Restated Receivables Purchase Agreement.

   
31.1*  Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

   
31.2*  Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

   
32.1**  Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

   
32.2**  Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

   
101.INS**  XBRL Instance Document.

   
101.SCH**  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.

   
101.CAL**  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document.

   
101.LAB**  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.

   
101.PRE**  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document.

_____________________

* Filed herewith.
** Furnished herewith. The information in these exhibits shall not be deemed to be “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act, or otherwise

subject to liability under that section, and shall not be incorporated by reference into any registration statement or other document filed under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, except as expressly set forth by specific reference in such filing.
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SIGNATURE

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

AVNET, INC.
(Registrant)
 
By:  /s/ RAYMOND SADOWSKI  
 Raymond Sadowski 

 
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer 

Date: April 27, 2012
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Exhibit 10.1

AMENDMENT NO. 3 TO 
SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED RECEIVABLES PURCHASE AGREEMENT

This Amendment No. 3 to Second Amended and Restated Receivables Purchase Agreement (this “Amendment”) is dated as of March 7,
2012, among Avnet Receivables Corporation, a Delaware corporation (“Seller”), Avnet, Inc., a New York corporation (“Avnet”), as initial Servicer (the
Servicer together with Seller, the “Seller Parties” and each a “Seller Party”), the entities party hereto and identified as a “Financial Institution” (together with
any of their respective successors and assigns hereunder, the “Financial Institutions”), the entities party hereto and identified as a “Company” (together with
any of their respective successors and assigns hereunder, the “Companies”) and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (successor by merger to Bank One, NA (Main
Office Chicago)), as agent for the Purchasers or any successor agent hereunder (together with its successors and assigns hereunder, the “Agent”), amending
the Second Amended and Restated Receivables Purchase Agreement, dated as of August 26, 2010, as amended by Amendment No. 1 thereto, dated as of
December 28, 2010, and Amendment No. 2 thereto, dated as of August 25, 2011, each among the Seller Parties, the Financial Institutions, the Companies, and
the Agent (the “Original Agreement,” and as further amended, modified or supplemented from time to time, the “Receivables Purchase Agreement”).

RECITALS

The parties hereto are parties to the Original Agreement (or assignees thereof) and they now desire to amend the Original Agreement,
subject to the terms and conditions hereof, as more particularly described herein.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which
are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:

Section 1. Definitions Used Herein. Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined herein shall have the respective
meanings set forth for such terms in, or incorporated by reference into, the Original Agreement.

Section 2.    Amendment. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, the Original Agreement is hereby amended as follows:

(a)    The fifth paragraph of the Preliminary Statements to the Original Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the
following:

“In connection with the amendment and restatement of the Existing Agreement, the Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd., New
York Branch (“BTMU”) and Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank New York Branch (“CA”) became party to this Agreement as
Financial Institutions and Victory Receivables Corporation (the “BTMU Company”) and Atlantic Asset Securitization LLC (the “CA
Company”) became party to this Agreement as Companies.”

(b)    The following is added as a new sixth paragraph of the Preliminary Statements to the Original Agreement:

“Pursuant to assignment agreements entered into on January 4, 2012, CA and the CA Company each ceased to be parties to this
Agreement and PNC Bank, National Association (“PNC”) became party to this Agreement as a Financial Institution and Market Street
Funding LLC (the “PNC Company”) became party to this Agreement as a Company.”
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(c)    Section 7.1(p) of the Original Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

“(p)    General Ledger and Certain Receivables. Such Seller Party shall maintain its consolidated general accounting ledger such
that all indebtedness and other obligations owed to Originator or in which Originator has a security interest or other interest arising in
connection with the sale or lease of goods or the rendering of services by Originator and sold to Seller are recorded as part of general ledger
category “company code 0100” or “company code 1001”; provided however, that from and after December 28, 2010 indebtedness or other
obligations owed to Originator or in which Originator has a security interest or other interest arising in connection with the sale or lease of
goods or the rendering of services by the business previously conducted by businesses acquired by Originator in an Excluded Acquisition
shall not be recorded as part of general ledger category “company code 0100” or “company code 1001” until such time, if any, as such
indebtedness or other obligations are originated, serviced and collected in a manner substantially similar to the Receivables.”

(d)    The following new definitions are added to Exhibit I to the Original Agreement immediately following the definition of “Person”:

““PNC” has the meaning set forth in the Preliminary Statements to this Agreement.”

““PNC Company” has the meaning set forth in the Preliminary Statements to this Agreement.”

(e)    The definition of “Excluded Receivable” in Exhibit I to the Original Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the
following:

““Excluded Receivable” means all indebtedness and other obligations owed to Originator or in which Originator has a security
interest or other interest (including, without limitation, any indebtedness, obligation or interest constituting an account, chattel paper,
instrument or general intangible) arising in connection with the sale or lease of goods or the rendering of services by Originator and further
includes, without limitation, the obligation to pay any Finance Charges with respect thereto, which, in any case, both (i) arises in connection
with the sale or lease of goods or the rendering of services by the business previously conducted by any businesses acquired by Originator
in an Excluded Acquisition and (ii) is not recorded or maintained in Avnet’s consolidated general ledger accounting records as part of
general ledger category “company code 0100” or “company code 1001” (other than any Receivables previously coded under “company
code 0100” or “company code 1001” that have been coded under any other category without the Agent’s prior written consent).
Indebtedness and other rights and obligations arising from any one transaction, including, without limitation, indebtedness and other rights
and obligations represented by an individual invoice, shall constitute an Excluded Receivable separate from an Excluded Receivable
consisting of the indebtedness and other rights and obligations arising from any other transaction; provided, that any indebtedness, rights or
obligations referred to in the immediately preceding sentence shall be an Excluded Receivable regardless of whether the account debtor or
Seller treats such indebtedness, rights or obligations as a separate payment obligation.”

(f)    Schedule A to the Original Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced by Schedule A hereto.

(g)    Paragraph f of the definition of “Company Costs” in Schedule C to the Original Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and
replaced with the following:
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“For any Purchaser Interest purchased by the PNC Company, for any day, the Capital of such Purchaser Interest multiplied by the
per annum rate equivalent to the weighted average cost (as determined by its Related Financial Institution and which shall include
commissions of placement agents and dealers, incremental carrying costs incurred with respect to the notes issued by the PNC Company
maturing on dates other than those on which corresponding funds are received by the PNC Company, other borrowings by the PNC
Company and and other costs associated with the issuance of the PNC Company’s notes) of or related to the issuance of notes by the PNC
Company that are allocated, in whole or in part, by the PNC Company or its Related Financial Institution to fund or maintain the Capital
associated with such Purchaser Interest (and which may be also allocated in part to the funding of other assets of the PNC Company);
provided, that if any component of such rate is a discount rate, in calculating the PNC Company’s cost of funds for such Purchaser Interest,
the PNC Company’s Related Financial Institution shall for such component use the rate resulting from converting such discount rate to an
interest bearing equivalent rate per annum; provided, further, that notwithstanding anything in this Agreement or any other Transaction
Document to the contrary, the Seller agrees that any amounts payable to the PNC Company in respect of the PNC Company’s cost of funds
shall include an amount equal to the portion of the face amount of the outstanding notes issued by the PNC Company to fund or maintain
the Capital associated with such Purchaser Interest that corresponds to the portion of the proceeds of such notes that was used to pay the
interest component of maturing notes issued to fund or maintain such Capital, to the extent that the PNC Company had not received
payments of interest in respect of such interest component prior to the maturity date of such maturing notes (for purposes of the foregoing,
the “interest component” of such notes equals the excess of the face amount thereof over the net proceeds received by the PNC Company
from its issuance of notes, except that if such notes are issued on an interest-bearing basis, its “interest component” will equal the amount of
interest accruing on such notes through maturity).”

Section 3.    Limited Waiver. In connection with the amendment hereunder, the Seller Parties have requested, and the Agent, Financial Institutions
and Companies hereby grant, a limited waiver in respect of any breach or Amortization Event arising out of recording Receivables as part of general ledger
category “company code 1001” prior to the date hereof, subject to the following:

(a)    Each Seller Party acknowledges that the receivables recorded as part of general ledger category “company code 1001” prior to the date
hereof (the “Waived Receivables”) were included in such category without the prior written consent of the Agent, and accordingly, confirms, acknowledges
and agrees that all such receivables have constituted, and continue to constitute, Receivables in accordance with the definition thereof under the Original
Agreement and the Receivables Purchase Agreement and have at all times remained Receivables under the Original Agreement and subject to the lien
thereunder.

(b)    Each Seller Party hereby represents and warrants that (i) no receivables have been recorded as part of general ledger category
“company code 1001” other than receivables constituting Receivables under the Original Agreement; and (ii) with respect to the Waived Receivables, it has at
all times adhered to each and every covenant and restriction (except with respect to the recording of the Waived Receivables) that is applicable to Receivables
under the Original Agreement (including without limitation all restrictions on commingling the same).

Section 4.    Conditions to Effectiveness of Amendment. This Amendment shall become effective as of the date hereof, upon the satisfaction of the
conditions precedent that:

(a)    Amendment. The Agent and each Seller Party shall have received, on or before the date hereof, executed counterparts of this
Amendment, duly executed by each of the parties hereto.

(b)    Representations and Warranties. As of the date hereof, both before and after giving effect to this Amendment, all of the representations
and warranties of each Seller Party contained in the Original Agreement and in each other Transaction Document (except to the extent such representations
and warranties relate to the recording
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of Waived Receivables described in Section 3 above) shall be true and correct in all material respects as though made on the date hereof (and by its execution
hereof, each Seller Party shall be deemed to have represented and warranted such).

(c)    No Amortization Event or Potential Amortization Event. As of the date hereof, both before and after giving effect to this Amendment,
no Amortization Event (except to the extent waived in Section 3 above) or Potential Amortization Event shall have occurred and be continuing (and by its
execution hereof, each of Seller Party shall be deemed to have represented and warranted such).

Section 5.    Miscellaneous.

(a)    Effect; Ratification. The amendment set forth herein is effective solely for the purposes set forth herein and shall be limited precisely
as written, and shall not be deemed (i) to be a consent to, or an acknowledgment of, any amendment, waiver or modification of any other term or condition of
the Original Agreement or of any other instrument or agreement referred to therein or (ii) to prejudice any right or remedy which the Agent, any Company or
Financial Institution (or any of their respective assigns) may now have or may have in the future under or in connection with the Receivables Purchase
Agreement, as amended hereby, or any other instrument or agreement referred to therein (except to the extent waived in Section 3 above). Each reference in
the Receivables Purchase Agreement to “this Agreement,” “herein,” “hereof” and words of like import and each reference in the other Transaction
Documents to the Original Agreement or to the “Receivables Purchase Agreement” shall mean the Original Agreement as amended hereby. This Amendment
shall be construed in connection with and as part of the Receivables Purchase Agreement and all terms, conditions, representations, warranties, covenants and
agreements set forth in the Receivables Purchase Agreement and each other instrument or agreement referred to therein, except as herein amended, are hereby
ratified and confirmed and shall remain in full force and effect.

(b)    Transaction Documents. This Amendment is a Transaction Document executed pursuant to the Receivables Purchase Agreement and
shall be construed, administered and applied in accordance with the terms and provisions thereof.

(c)    Costs, Fees and Expenses. Seller agrees to reimburse the Agent and each Purchaser and its assigns upon demand for all reasonable and
documented out-of-pocket costs, fees and expenses in connection with the preparation, execution and delivery of this Amendment (including the reasonable
fees and expenses of counsel to the Agent).

(d)    Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts, each such counterpart constituting an original and all
of which when taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

(e)    Severability. Any provision contained in this Amendment which is held to be inoperative, unenforceable or invalid in any jurisdiction
shall, as to that jurisdiction, be inoperative, unenforceable or invalid without affecting the remaining provisions of this Amendment in that jurisdiction or the
operation, enforceability or validity of such provision in any other jurisdiction.

(f)    GOVERNING LAW. THIS AMENDMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS
OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK EXCLUDING CHOICE-OF-LAW PRINCIPLES OF THE LAW OF SUCH STATE THAT WOULD REQUIRE THE
APPLICATION OF THE LAWS OF A JURISDICTION OTHER THAN SUCH STATE.

(g)    WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. EACH PARTY HERETO HEREBY WAIVES TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY JUDICIAL PROCEEDING
INVOLVING, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, ANY MATTER (WHETHER SOUNDING IN TORT, CONTRACT OR OTHERWISE) IN ANY WAY
ARISING OUT OF, RELATED TO, OR
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CONNECTED WITH THIS AMENDMENT, ANY DOCUMENT EXECUTED BY ORIGINATOR PURSUANT TO THIS AMENDMENT OR THE
RELATIONSHIP ESTABLISHED HEREUNDER OR THEREUNDER.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment to be executed and delivered by their
respective duly authorized officers as of the date first written above.

AVNET RECEIVABLES CORPORATION, as Seller

By:             
Name: 
Title: 

AVNET, INC., as Servicer

By:             
Name: 
Title: 



CHARIOT FUNDING LLC, as a Company

By:    JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., 
    its Attorney-in-Fact

By:                  
Name: 
Title: 

Commitment: $153,000,000 JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A., 
as a Financial Institution and as Agent

By:              
Name: 
Title: 



LIBERTY STREET FUNDING LLC, as a Company

By:             
Name: 
Title: 

Commitment: $127,500,000 THE BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA, as a Financial Institution

By:             
Name: 
Title: 



AMSTERDAM FUNDING CORPORATION, as a Company

By:             
Name: 
Title: 

THAMES ASSET GLOBAL SECURITIZATION NO. 1, INC., as a Company

By:             
Name: 
Title: 

Commitment: $102,000,000 THE ROYAL BANK OF SCOTLAND PLC, as a Financial Institution

By:    RBS SECURITIES INC., as
agent

By:                 
Name: 
Title: 



STARBIRD FUNDING CORPORATION, as a Company

By:          
Name: 
Title: 

Commitment: $102,000,000 BNP PARIBAS, acting through its New York Branch, as a Financial Institution

By:             
Name: 
Title:

By:             
Name: 
Title: 



VICTORY RECEIVABLES CORPORATION, as a Company

By:             
Name: 
Title: 

Commitment: $102,000,000 THE BANK OF TOKYO-MITSUBISHI UFJ, LTD., 
NEW YORK BRANCH, as a Financial Institution

By:             
Name: 
Title: 



Commitment: $100,000,000 WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as a Company and as a
Financial Institution

By:             
Name: 
Title: 



MARKET STREET FUNDING LLC, as a Company

By:             
Name: 
Title: 

Commitment: $76,500,000 PNC BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, 
as a Financial Institution

By:             
Name: 
Title:



SCHEDULE A

COMMITMENTS, COMPANY PURCHASE LIMITS 
AND RELATED FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Commitments of Financial Institutions

Financial Institution Commitment
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. $153,000,000
The Bank of Nova Scotia $127,500,000
The Royal Bank of Scotland PLC $102,000,000
BNP Paribas, acting through its New York Branch $102,000,000
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd., New York Branch $102,000,000
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association $100,000,000
PNC Bank, National Association $76,500,000

Company Purchase Limits and 
Related Financial Institutions of Companies

Company Company Purchase Limit Related Financial Institution(s)
Chariot Funding LLC $150,000,000 JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.
Liberty Street Funding LLC $125,000,000 The Bank of Nova Scotia
Thames Asset Securitization Global 1, Inc. $100,000,000 The Royal Bank of Scotland PLC
Starbird Funding Corporation $100,000,000 BNP Paribas, acting through its New York Branch
Victory Receivables Corporation $100,000,000 The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd., New York

Branch
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association $100,000,000 Wells Fargo Bank, National Association
Market Street Funding LLC $75,000,000 PNC Bank, National Association
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CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

I, Richard Hamada, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Avnet, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing equivalent functions):

a. all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: April 27, 2012

/s/ RICHARD HAMADA   
Richard Hamada  
Chief Executive Officer  
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CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

I, Raymond Sadowski, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Avnet, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as such term is
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing equivalent functions):

a. all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: April 27, 2012

/s/ RAYMOND SADOWSKI  
Raymond Sadowski  
Chief Financial Officer  
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Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350
(as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002)

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2012 (the “Report”), I, Richard Hamada, Chief Executive Officer of
Avnet, Inc., (the “Company”) hereby certify that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: April 27, 2012

/s/ RICHARD HAMADA   
Richard Hamada  
Chief Executive Officer  
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Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350
(as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002)

In connection with the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2012 (the “Report”), I, Raymond Sadowski, Chief Financial Officer of
Avnet, Inc., (the “Company”) hereby certify that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: April 27, 2012

/s/ RAYMOND SADOWSKI   
Raymond Sadowski  
Chief Financial Officer  


